

The House Committee on Health and Human Services offers the following substitute to HB 998:

A BILL TO BE ENTITLED
AN ACT

1 To amend Part 6 of Article 7 of Chapter 3 of Title 20 of the Official Code of Georgia
2 Annotated, relating to medical scholarships, so as to revise provisions relating to medical
3 scholarships and loans; to revise provisions relating to the areas to be served as a condition
4 of receiving a scholarship or loan; to revise provisions relating to immediate liability for
5 repayment; to repeal a population act provision; to revise legislative purpose; to provide for
6 related matters; to repeal conflicting laws; and for other purposes.

7 BE IT ENACTED BY THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY OF GEORGIA:

8 **SECTION 1.**

9 Part 6 of Article 7 of Chapter 3 of Title 20 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated,
10 relating to medical scholarships, is amended by revising Code Section 20-3-512, relating to
11 powers of the Georgia Board for Physician Workforce as to medical student loans and
12 scholarships, as follows:

13 "20-3-512.

14 (a) It shall be the duty of the board to receive and pass upon, allow or disallow all
15 applications for loans made to or scholarships given to students who are bona fide citizens
16 and residents of the State of Georgia and who desire to become doctors of medicine and
17 who are acceptable for enrollment in an accredited ~~four-year~~ medical school in the United
18 States which has received accreditation or provisional accreditation by the Liaison
19 Committee on Medical Education ~~of the American Medical Association~~ or the Bureau of
20 Professional Education of the American Osteopathic Association for a program in medical
21 education designed to qualify the graduate for licensure by the Georgia Composite Medical
22 Board. The purpose of such loans shall be to enable such applicants to obtain a standard
23 four-year medical education from a medical school in the United States which has received
24 accreditation or provisional accreditation by the Liaison Committee on Medical Education
25 or the Bureau of Professional Education of the American Osteopathic Association which
26 will qualify them to become licensed to practice medicine in the State of Georgia. It shall

27 be the duty of the board to make a careful and full investigation of the ability, character,
 28 and qualifications of each applicant and determine the applicant's fitness to become the
 29 recipient of such loan or scholarship, and for ~~that~~ such purpose the board may propound
 30 such examination to each applicant which it deems proper. The board may also prescribe
 31 such rules and regulations as it deems necessary and proper to carry out the purpose and
 32 intention of this part. The investigation of the applicant shall include an investigation of
 33 the ability of the applicant, and of the parents of such applicant, to pay his or her own
 34 tuition at such medical school, and the board in granting such loans and scholarships shall
 35 give preference to qualified applicants who, and whose parents, are unable to pay the
 36 applicant's tuition at such a medical school.

37 (b) The board shall have authority to grant to each applicant deemed by the board to be
 38 qualified to receive the same a loan or scholarship on a one-year renewable basis for the
 39 purpose of acquiring a ~~standard four-year~~ medical education from a medical school in the
 40 United States which has received accreditation or provisional accreditation by the Liaison
 41 Committee on Medical Education or the Bureau of Professional Education of the American
 42 Osteopathic Association, upon such terms and conditions as in the judgment of the board
 43 may be necessary or desirable. The board is authorized to consider, among other criteria,
 44 the home area of the student and the likelihood, if determinable, that the student will
 45 practice medicine in an area of this state which may entitle the student to repay the loan
 46 through services rendered as provided in this part."

47 **SECTION 2.**

48 Said part is further amended by repealing and reenacting Code Section 20-3-513, relating to
 49 determination of amount by board, terms and conditions, and repayment in services, as
 50 follows:

51 "20-3-513.

52 Students whose applications are approved shall receive a loan or scholarship in an amount
 53 to be determined by the board to defray the tuition and other expenses of the applicant in
 54 an accredited medical school in the United States which has received accreditation or
 55 provisional accreditation by the Liaison Committee on Medical Education or the Bureau
 56 of Professional Education of the American Osteopathic Association for a program in
 57 medical education designed to qualify the graduate for licensure by the Georgia Composite
 58 Medical Board. The loans and scholarships shall be paid in such manner as the Georgia
 59 Board for Physician Workforce shall determine and may be prorated so as to pay to the
 60 medical college or school to which any applicant is admitted such funds as are required by
 61 such college or school with the balance being paid directly to the applicant; all of which
 62 shall be under such terms and conditions as may be provided under rules and regulations

63 of the board. The loans or scholarships to be granted to each applicant shall be based
 64 upon the condition that the full amount of the loans or scholarships shall be repaid to the
 65 State of Georgia in services to be rendered by the applicant by practicing his or her
 66 profession in an area of this state which is rural and underserved by primary care
 67 physicians as determined by the board, in a regional area of this state composed of rural
 68 counties where an unmet need for certain primary care and other critical need specialty
 69 physicians exists as determined by the board and approved by the commissioners of
 70 community health and public health, or at any hospital or facility operated by or under
 71 the jurisdiction of the Department of Public Health, the Department of Behavioral Health
 72 and Developmental Disabilities, the Department of Corrections, or the Department of
 73 Juvenile Justice. For each year of practicing his or her profession in such board approved
 74 location, the applicant shall receive credit for the amount of the scholarship received
 75 during any one year in medical school, with the interest due on such amount."

76

SECTION 3.

77 Said part is further amended by revising Code Section 20-3-514, relating to contract
 78 provisions for loan or scholarship, as follows:

79 "20-3-514.

80 (a) Each applicant before being granted a loan or scholarship shall enter into a contract
 81 with the State of Georgia agreeing to the terms and conditions upon which the loan or
 82 scholarship is granted, including such terms and provisions as will carry out the full
 83 purpose and intent of this part. The form of such contract shall be prepared and approved
 84 by the Attorney General, and each contract shall be signed by the chairperson of the board,
 85 countersigned by the executive director of the board, and shall be signed by the applicant.
 86 For the purposes of this part, the disabilities of minority of all applicants granted loans or
 87 scholarships pursuant to this part are removed, and ~~the said~~ such applicants are declared
 88 to be of full lawful age for the purpose of entering into the contract provided for in this
 89 Code section; and such contract so executed by an applicant is declared to be a valid and
 90 binding contract the same as though ~~the said~~ such applicant were of the full age of majority.
 91 The board is vested with full and complete authority to bring an action in its own name
 92 against any applicant for any balance due the board on any such contract.

93 (b) An applicant who has entered into a loan or scholarship contract with the board and
 94 who:

- 95 (1) Is dismissed for either academic or disciplinary reasons from the college or school
 96 of medicine he or she is attending; ~~or~~
 97 (2) Voluntarily terminates his or her training and education in ~~that~~ such institution for
 98 any reason prior to completion of training; or

135 sufficient number of the graduates from medical schools to return to Georgia and practice
136 their profession in rural and underserved areas, thus affording adequate medical care to the
137 people of Georgia."

138

SECTION 5.

139 All laws and parts of laws in conflict with this Act are repealed.